Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, SIXTY-THIRD MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, September 5, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-373) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the September 02, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS

The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 371 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
August 29, 2025 minutes
Motion 25 372 To approve the August 2025 Clerk’s Report as presented

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Page 1 of 7




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Ms. Becky Willard addressed the Commissioners. She asked if any of the
Commissioners have been in a meeting with EDF or any other wind and solar companies
and Commissioner Blair stated he was in a meeting one time with County Counselor Jim
Emerson. Commissioner Wood stated he was contacted a couple months ago by a
company wanting to have a meeting and he stated he called Mr. Emerson regarding this.
Commissioner Wood stated he received an email as well and Commissioner Moody
stated he did as well. Commissioner Moody stated there is nothing wrong with the
Commissioners having meetings. Ms. Willard stated they can wait until September 19"
until Mr. Joshua Albin is present but that they are nervous about the situation.
Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson about this group meeting with planning and
zoning and Mr. Emerson explained they would have to set up an open meeting. Ms.
Willard stated an open meeting would be great. Ms. Willard asked if Planning and
Zoning will get ample time to do their part in this process before anything is decided and
the Commissioners confirmed. Ms. Willard discussed the lack of regulations for zoned
areas.

Item Two: Mr. Ray Huff addressed the Commissioners. He asked Commissioner Blair if
he was in a private meeting with EDF Renewables and Commissioner Blair confirmed he
was in a meeting with them as well as Mr. Emerson. Mr. Huff asked Commissioner Blair
if he would share what the meeting was about and what was discussed and Commissioner
Blair stated EDF just asked questions about the process and that it was very similar to the
things they talk about in open meetings. Mr. Huff asked if the other two Commissioners
were invited to this meeting and Mr. Emerson stated they were invited to meet with EDF
but not at the same time. Mr. Emerson stated he also answered EDF by email on July 15
informing them that they are more than welcome to come to an open meeting to discuss
any of these questions and that he has not heard anything back from them. Mr. Huff
asked if it was public knowledge that Commissioner Blair was going to meet with EDF
and Commissioner Moody asked where he is going with this. Commissioner Moody
stated that it is Commissioner Blair’s district and he should meet with whoever wants to
meet with him. Mr. Huff stated he does not disagree and is not making any accusations
but that he thought that everything was going to be out in the open and that it is a little
concerning to him that he is just now learning of this private meeting with EDF.
Commissioner Blair stated EDF calls very frequently, that he was getting complaints
from land owners for not answering the calls, and that he had told them he was not going
to have those conversations over the phone because he was not going to be accused of
saying certain things on the phone. Commissioner Blair mentioned the same land owners
wanted to sit down with him and EDF to have these conversations so that is what he did.
Commissioner Blair mentioned he answered questions about the Comprehensive Plan,
what kind of timeline was going on, and that none of it was solid and no decisions were
being made. Commissioner Blair stated he would do the same thing with Mr. Huff’s
group. Mr. Huff stated there was an email that went out regarding a deadline with today’s
date and asked what that deadline was for and Commissioner Moody explained the email
had mentioned them lifting the moratorium or else the projects were going to be impacted
and Commissioner Moody stated they are not lifting anything until they are done with the
Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Huff asked if this company was setting a deadline of today for

Page 2 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

lifting the moratorium and Commissioner Moody and Wood stated that is what they got
out of that email. Mr. Huff asked if Mr. Joshua Albin will be presenting results on
September 19 or if he is just going to have them compiled by then and Mr. Emerson
confirmed Mr. Albin will be presenting the results on September 19.

Item Three: Mr. Jeff Murphy addressed the Commissioners. Mr. Murphy stated he does
not like a company like EDF having a meeting and not being on the agenda or having the
public not know about the meeting. Mr. Emerson stated he sent them an email on July 15
and has not heard from them since. Mr. Murphy stated he understands meeting with one
or two people on your own but that once larger groups are involved it needs to be a public
meeting. Commissioner Blair mentioned during Covid he was asked to meet with a group
of individuals during covid so he agreed, and that when he showed up there was about 70
people there. He stated he listened to their concerns and answered their questions and that
it was not an issue back then. Commissioner Blair explained he did not make any
decisions during that meeting and simply just brought concerns back to the other
Commissioners that he got from this meeting, and that this meeting he had a couple of
months ago with EDF was just like that meeting. He confirmed again that he made no
decisions but just answered questions and heard concerns. Mr. Murphy stated it is
however the Commissioner wants to handle it. Mr. Murphy stated he believes if someone
has something to say they can get up and say it in front of the cameras and anybody else.
Mr. Murphy stated Commissioner Blair can handle it differently by telling individuals if
they want to talk to the Commission that they can come to a public meeting and that he
does not have to take those meetings. Commissioner Blair asked Mr. Emerson if he is
doing anything illegal and Mr. Emerson confirmed that he is not. Mr. Murphy stated he
understands it is not illegal but that he is just giving his opinion.

Item Four: Mr. Glenn Peak addressed the Commissioners. He asked if the
Commissioners were aware that the funding has been pulled for wind and solar by the
government. Commissioner Moody stated he was unaware of that. Commissioner Wood
stated he received a call a few days ago from an individual stating that President Trump
was attempting to cut funding for wind and solar. Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Peak
what paper this information was in and Mr. Peak answered it was written in Farm Talk.
Mr. Peak stated the funding was pulled on crop land. Commissioner Wood stated he was
told that if the projects were in progress that they would look at them and possibly not
pull their funding and Mr. Peak stated this article does not mention that. Mr. Peak
discussed funding for roads in the county and that he does not believe we need more
money for roads in the county but that they need to do a better job of spending the money
that they have.

Item Five: Ms. Willard addressed the Commissioners. She asked if they should go ahead
and plan an open meeting for after Mr. Albin gives the results to the Commissioners and
Commissioner Moody stated she is going the right direction but to wait until after
September 19 when they get the results. Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson if the
public will be able to get up and ask questions regarding the survey at the September 19
meeting. Mr. Emerson answered that they have always allowed that. Commissioner
Wood discussed if the meeting is going to be packed, they could look in to having the
meeting upstairs and Ms. Willard stated her group has several people that work during
the day. Commissioner Moody stated he is assuming there is going to be a lot more

Page 3 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

people present on September 19 than there is today. Ms. Willard stated her group had a
booth at the county fair and that it was eye opening. She explained they had people who
had stopped by who had already signed for the turbine leases that no longer want the
turbines.

Item Six: Mr. Jeff Murphy addressed the Commissioners again. He stated he talked to a
landowner who stated they did not want the turbines but that their neighbors signed up so
they felt like they had to. He explained there is pressure being put on these individuals to
sign for the wind turbines. Commissioner Moody discussed that people sometimes have
to stand up and make their own decisions. Commissioner Wood asked why can’t people
make their own decision. Mr. Murphy mentioned some of the landowners being older and
that these companies take advantage of that.

Item Seven: Mr. John Prince addressed the Commissioners. He discussed that he sells
bird dogs and hunting on properties that have wind turbines. Mr. Prince discussed all the
problems he has heard from a client about the wind and solar projects. He mentioned how
there are no wild birds around, no deer, and that they also make roads and remove dirt.
Mr. Prince mentioned the companies are lying about the money that will be received
from having the wind and solar projects.

Item Eight: Commissioner Wood mentioned the cut off date of August 22 for the
surveys. He brought up that advertising was still going until August 31. Commissioner
Wood asked if they are going to count the surveys that came in after August 22 or not.
Commissioner Moody stated his thought is why would they not count them because he
wants the will of their constituents. Commissioner Moody asked Commissioner Blair
what he thinks and Commissioner Blair stated it depends on how it affects Mr. Albin’s
process since there was a cut off date set. Commissioner Moody stated he cannot imagine
that many surveys came in after the deadline. Commissioner Blair stated they could ask
Mr. Albin if he could compile all of the surveys after the deadline and add it in by
September 19. Commissioner Moody asked Mr. Emerson if that is something he could
contact Mr. Albin about and Mr. Emerson agreed. Commissioner Blair discussed
concerns with the results being postponed longer if Mr. Albin cannot get the late surveys
compiled in time for the September 19 meeting. Commissioner Moody stated to have Mr.
Emerson reach out and have an answer by Tuesday’s meeting. Commissioner Wood
stated when they set the deadline, they did not realize the advertising would run past the
deadline.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Mr. Aaron Crozier, County Maintenance, addressed the Commissioners. Mr.
Emerson stated he met with Mr. Crozier and Mr. Robert Gorentz to discuss the boilers at
the Pittsburg Judicial Center. Mr. Emerson mentioned they are going to send out bids for
removal and replacement of the boilers in the Pittsburg Judicial Center and that they will
be due October 2 and opened up on October 3. Commissioner Wood asked if one boiler is
good and one boiler is bad and Mr. Crozier confirmed that one boiler can be kept as a
spare for the Crawford County Jail.

Page 4 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

On motion (25-374) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Moody to
approve going out for bid for two boilers for the Pittsburg Judicial Center.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Moody, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

NEW BUSINESS

Item One: Mr. Emerson mentioned the approval of Novogradac for the Housing Survey.
He stated he has an agreement from them to present to the Commissioners. Mr. Emerson
mentioned on the bottom of page two are the fees in the amount of $13,500.00.
Commissioner Blair asked how long they were thinking it would be and Mr. Emerson
stated the agreement states 60 day timeline on page three and that it mentions upon
signature they are prepared to start work with a report being delivered within 60 days. He
also explained they require half of payment up front. Mr. Emerson stated he would like to
move forward and get this process underway. Commissioner Wood stated he had a
person call him who has started a project and wants to know if they would be eligible for
RHID program and Mr. Emerson explained.

On motion (25-375) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
approve the agreement with Novogradac for the Housing Needs Analysis and authorizing
the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Moody, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Two: Mr. Emerson mentioned they need to make a change on the agenda for
Tuesday at 9:00 AM. He stated there was a work session in place to discuss per diem but
that he will need to move that to a different day because Ms. Lindsay Peterson with
KDHE will be available by zoom at 9:00 AM to discuss HHW. Mr. Emerson also
mentioned Mr. Dennis Meier may be present as well and he will also inform the SEK
Recycling Center regarding this. He stated he will reschedule the work session to discuss
per diem at a later date.

Item Three: Commissioner Wood discussed replacing a back up generator at the
Pittsburg Judicial Center. He stated he believes they need to come over to a meeting or
work session and inform the Commissioners of what is going on with this situation. Mr.
Emerson stated he will reach out to them about this.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Commissioner Blair thanked Commissioner Moody and his road and bridge
crew for helping with mowing Gooding Road.

Page 5 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: Commissioner Wood requested an executive session for 10 minutes to discuss
items that would be deemed privileged in the Attorney-Client Relationship.

On motion (25-376) of Commissioner Moody and second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session for 10 minutes to
discuss legal advice regarding roads which would be deemed privileged in the attorney-
client relationship pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson present.
The open meeting will resume at 11:01 A.M. The motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:51 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:59 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: September 9, 2025 — 9:00 AM Work Session with Ms. Lindsay Peterson
with KDHE via zoom to discuss HHW.

Item Two: September 16, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Mr. Colin Holthaus with
KWORC to discuss worker’s compensation.

Item Three: September 19, 2025- Mr. Joshua Albin discussing Comprehensive Plan
Survey.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to adjourn
the September 05, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at
11:00 AM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Page 6 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 09/8/2025 12:20 PM/amended BKW 9/8/25 1:30 PM

Page 7 of 7



